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Dear Director-General,

In the discussion paper, under the heading “Applicability of Asset Sale Test” in the “Asset
Sales” section, the following statement is made: “. . . court approval of sales outside the
ordinary course of business must take into account how the sale could impact on the
payment of wage and pension claims . . .”, with a footnote citing BIA s.65.13(8) and CCAA
s.36(7). This statement is false insofar as CCAA s. 36(7), as enacted, does not give such
protection to pension claims. This is due to a drafting error, referencing a non-existent
CCAA subsection 34(a) when a reference to “36(a)” is what would be required. This error
is acknowledged and explained in footnote 28 to the legislative summary for Bill C-12
(which Bill would be enacted as An Act to amend the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act, the
Companies’ Creditors Arrangement Act, the Wage Earner Protection Program Act and
chapter 47 of the Statutes of Canada, 2005, S.C. 2007 C. 36) as follows:

“(28) It should be noted that there is a small drafting error under the proposed section
36(7) of the CCAA. That section reads: “The court may grant the authorization only if the
court is satisfied that the company can and will make the payments that would have been
required under paragraphs 6(4)(a) and (5)(a) if the court had sanctioned the compromise
or arrangement” (emphasis added). Subsections 6(4)(a) and 6(5)(a) of the CCAA, as
enacted by Chapter 47, are the provisions that require the reorganizing debtor to meet its
obligations with respect to unpaid wage claims and unremitted pension plan contributions.
However, these provisions are renumbered under clause 106 of Bill C-12 as paragraphs
6(5)(a) and 6(6)(a). There is no 6(4)(a).”

This drafting error should be fixed.
Yours Truly,

Sam Babe, J.D., M.B.A.
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